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CHAIR BAISA: . . . (gavel). . . Will the General Plan Committee meeting please come to
order. Before we begin, the Chair would ask everyone in the room if you would
please put your cell phones on the silent mode; I'd appreciate that so we won't
have any interruptions and I will check mine too while we're at it. Okay. Thank
you very much. I'm Councilmember Gladys Baisa, Chair of this Committee.
This afternoon we will review Growth Boundaries and related maps for the
Wailuku-Kahului region in the Maui Island Plan. If we are unable to complete
our review of the Wailuku-Kahului Plan today, we still have the Chamber
reserved for tomorrow afternoon for our regular Thursday slot which is at 1:30.
Today we have several Committee voting Members with us. We have Don
Couch, the Committee Vice-Chair.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon, ma'am.
CHAIR BAISA: We have Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon. We have Joe Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.
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CHAIR BAISA: And we also have Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. And excused this afternoon are Members Carroll, Hokama,
and Mateo, and Mike White. From Administration we have with us Will Spence,
the Planning Director.
MR. SPENCE: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon. We have John Summers, the Administrative Planning
Officer. Good afternoon, John. We have Simone Bosco, the Senior Planner from
the Planning Department.
MS. BOSCO: Good afternoon.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon. We have Mike Napier, a GIS Analyst from the
Planning Department. We also have Mark King and we also have Dan
McNulty-Huffman. Good afternoon, all of you, and thank you for being with us.
We also have Richelle Thomson, Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MS. THOMSON: Good afternoon.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon. We also have our regular Staff. We have Legislative
Attorney David Raatz and we have Legislative Analyst Josiah Nishita. I don't see
Josiah. Oh, he's back there. For those of you that haven't seen him, he's new
Staff and we're very happy to have him with us. And our Committee Secretary
Clarita Balala. Members, before we accept public testimony today, Chair would
like to briefly provide some background information for the benefit of Committee
Members and the public. The draft Maui Island Plan is being considered pursuant
to Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code. The County Code establishes a
process that gives the Council the policy-making authority to approve the Maui
Island Plan by ordinance after receiving the recommendations of the Maui
General Plan Advisory Committee, the Maui Planning Commission, and the
Planning Director. In addition, the County Charter designates the Planning
Director as the Council's Land Use Advisor. This Committee is grateful for the
recommendations of the Maui GPAC, the Maui Planning Commission, and the
Planning Director, and obviously takes them seriously and treats them with great
respect, but we as Council Members are charged with the responsibility of
reviewing the competing recommendations and making policy decisions in the
best interest of Maui County's future. It would be easier to just ratify something
but making the tough policy decisions is the Council's legal obligation. Though it
is challenging to have contrasting views presented to us, the work necessary to
reach consensus will ultimately make for a better final product. By setting up a
-3-

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 14, 2012

multi-layer review process, the prior Council that created the process clearly
wanted us to receive varying viewpoints and then reach our own conclusions. We
are very fortunate to benefit from the collective wisdom of the GPAC, the
Planning Commission, and the Planning Department, and the testifying members
of the public. I appreciate the patience of the public and my colleagues as we
continue to progress through this laborious process. Mr. Couch. Mr. Couch, you
wanted to say something?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yes. We're going to have testimony, Madam Chair, from
people and...who have interest in either someway or other moving the
boundaries. Typically it's going to from an agency that wants to include...us to
include their project inside. How are you...do you want us to handle that
situation? Are we...are they going to be able to make a presentation or are, are
we doing it through testimony? How's that going to work?
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much for asking the question. We have pondered this
for quite a while now and I have worked with Staff and as it stands at this
moment...and I caution you that we may have to revise the way we're
progressing if we're not progressing. Also if it doesn't work, remember this is the
first time that this is being done and so we're kind of learning how to dance as we
go and so we have a plan, if the plan doesn't work, I'll be the first one to admit
it's not working and we'll try something else. At this time, this is the plan. We
will accept all testimony today under the normal way, you come up and you say,
hi, I'm so-and-so and I'm the person who wants to do thus and so and it isn't in
the Plan, I want it included, and that, you know, all your testimony that you
normally give. We will accept that. We will have Staff keeping track of all of
those requests. The problem we're dealing with right now is we don't know how
many we have, and as you know we are under very serious time constraints. So,
it is my wish that we create a list of these...of persons who would like to make
alterations in boundary lines, and when we have that matrix, we will know and we
will schedule a time to have you all come back and at that time, you will have
time with the Committee and it'll depend on how many, if we have 50, we can't
give you all a whole lot of time. If we have five, that'll make it much easier and
we can afford more time for each person. So, first of all, we want to get through
the testimony, we want to collect the list, and then we'll decide how we're going
to go with working with the, the requests that have been made. So, I hope
everybody's clear so that the Members, we will not be getting into a whole lot of
discussion about the various requests today. Is everybody clear? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that bit of
information and you know, what my colleague had said about developers coming
in to make changes. What I'm so afraid of is, is the people Upcountry, the old
time folks that don't follow this process that may want to create a family
subdivision. I, I'm hoping they're hearing because once we make that decision to
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urbanize certain areas that it's going to cost them money to change that, and I, I, I
think we need to relay that message to especially people up in Makawao, in Kula,
probably in Haiku, too. So, I, I just wanted to make that comment to you, Chair,
so that, you know, not only big developers but long-time residents have that
opportunity.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Pontanilla for bringing that up. Of course
those are the piece of people that we do not want to cut out of the process or hurt
in any way. I want to really thank the public because there is a lot of efforts going
on to educate the public. There is something going on on Facebook; there's
something going on on MauiNow.com ; there's something going on on the radio.
There is, I understand, FACE has taken on an effort and there's a whole lot of
efforts out there to educate the public. We will also continue to do press release
and meet with, you know, various organizations in the community and try to be as
available as we can so this doesn't come as a surprise to people. And definitely
towards the end where we're getting to final approval, we'll have to do a lot more
public relations so that everybody's aware of it, and remember it isn't going to be
over until the second reading of the finished product so, we got a way to go. And
therefore, I would like to begin but I wanted to inform everybody more or less
how we would go today, because that way we won't spend a lot of time trying to
get all the answers out of anybody that has a proposal today. So, if we could then
without objections, Members, I'm going to start with public testimony. Testifiers,
your testimony will be limited to the item on the agenda today and we've all
heard what that is. Please sign up at the desk in the lobby if you want to testify.
You are limited to three minutes with one minute to conclude. Please state your
name and who you are representing if it's anybody besides yourself. So,
Members, we're going to start with public testimony. We have a number of
people signed up. Our first testifier today is Pam Daoust and she will be followed
by Jacob Verkerke. Ms. Daoust.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

MS. DAOUST: Aloha, I'm Pam Daoust and I'm testifying as president of the Maalaea
Community Association or MCA. As you know from our previous testimony,
MCA has advocated for identifying and preserving our agricultural lands,
particularly our prime ag lands. We have supported retention of the language and
maps in the original draft of the Maui Island Plan recommended by GPAC, the
Planning Commission, and previous Planning Directors. We appreciate Planning
Director Will Spence's concerns but also contend that those concerns can and
should be dealt with in a manner that does not substantially weaken the language
or the intent of the original draft. If followed verbatim, Mr. Spence's
recommendations we believe would result in an oversimplification of the Plan,
rendering it inadequate to protect our precious ag lands, the unique characteristics
and personalities of our small towns, and the open space greenways, greenbelts,
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country town designations, and so on that prevent and control urban sprawl. The
idea that these planning decisions should be deferred to the community plan level,
as Mr. Spence has suggested, violates the spirit and intent of the Maui County
Charter which clearly states the objectives of each community plan shall be to
implement policies of the General Plan. Kicking the can down the road to the
community plan process would mean in effect that the tail would be wagging the
dog instead of the other way around. The Charter also makes very clear that the
General Plan should have detailed, specific policies to implement. It says, and I
quote, the General Plan should indicate desired population and physical
development patterns for each island and region, shall address the unique
problems and needs of each island and region, shall explain the opportunities and
the social, economic, and environmental consequences related to potential
developments, and shall set forth a desired sequence, patterns, and characteristics
for future developments. The General Plan shall identify objectives to be
achieved and priorities, policies and implementing actions to be pursued with
respect to population density, land use maps, land use regulations, transportation
systems, public and community facility locations, water and sewer systems,
visitor destinations, urban design, and other matters related to development.
That's the language in the Charter. This all inclusive mandate is why so much
thought and specificity went into the very elements that Mr. Spence now wants to
simplify. We appreciate that the Committee decided not to work from
Mr. Spence's proposed amendments as your starting point for Chapter 8. We
hope that you do not succumb to the temptation to oversimplify the Plan which in
the end would mean watering down the language and the protections, defeating
the intent of the Charter itself. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much Members, questions for our testifier? Seeing
none, Ms. Daoust, thank you very much. Our next testifier is Jacob Verkerke and
Mr. Verkerke will be followed by Irene Bowie.
MR. VERKERKE: Good afternoon, Chair, and thank you very much for the courtesy
extended. Out of appreciation for that, I was going to pretty much echo the
testimony of Ms. Daoust, so I will cut my testimony short by just saying that I'm

in wholehearted agreement with the concern that she raised. Simplifying the Plan
at this point is not in anybody's best interest. Secondly, I would like to remind
you, in light of the introductory remarks you made today, that the Waikapu...I'm
sorry. My name is Jacob Verkerke. I'm here in my capacity as the president of
Waikapu Community Association. You may have heard that refrain before
so...sorry, I forgot about that.
CHAIR BAISA: That's okay.
MR. VERKERKE: On March 1 st, the Waikapu Community Association submitted
extensive testimony that detailed the number of requests for corrections perhaps
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or a return to previous versions of the General Plan so I won't repeat those now.
You should have those in your folders, March 1 4 . There's about six requests that
we specifically had. So, thank you for giving me the opportunity to testify at this
time and I urge you to take a look at that and to be heedful of concerns with
simplifying the Plan unadvisedly. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Verkerke. Any questions for Mr. Verkerke? Seeing
none, thank you, Jacob.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Our next testifier is Irene Bowie and she'll be followed by Tamara
Paltin. Good afternoon.
MS. BOWIE: Good afternoon, Chair and Committee Members. I'm Irene Bowie,
Executive Director of Maui Tomorrow Foundation. Maui Tomorrow asks that
this Committee not support efforts to simplify the Maui Island Plan because of its
size and detail. The following is a list of current General Plan planning
documents showing that general plans in many areas in this State and throughout
the country are of comparable size: Hawaii County's plan is 431 pages; Kauai
County, 350; Kona Community Development Plan, 277; Jefferson County,
Washington, 429 pages; King County, Washington 438 pages; San Diego,
California's Comprehensive Plan is 524 pages; Mann County, 667 pages; Santa
Barbara, California, 777 pages. The city, the city of San Diego's Comprehensive
General Plan at 524 pages won the 2010 American Planning Association's
National Planning Award of Excellence for a comprehensive plan. This type of
plan is where contemporary planning is headed. The plan is detailed for a reason.
The purpose of the Maui Island Plan from day one has been to actually implement
its recommendations. The level of detail shown in the 2010 version of the Plan is
important, as history has shown that broad and vague plans rarely make the
conversion to defensible land use regulations. We hear criticism of the Maui
Island Plan as being an additional compliance layer but it is not. In reality, having
clear language in this Plan helps to facilitate the work needed for our future
community plans and will make the completion of those community plans much
easier. Clarity in the Maui Island Plan will provide the framework needed for our
community plans. We ask this General Plan Committee to support and respect the
efforts of two past Planning Directors, nine members of the Maui Planning
Commission, the 25 members of GPAC, and five years of community input.
Please do not allow this document to be weakened and vague. The Maui Island
Plan is 368 pages in length and we believe that Maui's quality of life is worth
every page. Mahalo.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Irene, for being
here...your...giving public testimony. The question that I have, you know, all
those areas that you mentioned, you know, on the continental of United States
they're similar in size as Maui County?
MS. BOWIE: I bet...I think there's a wide range here. I think Kauai's plan being
350 pages, we could certainly say that's similar and the Big Island, 431 pages
would be very similar, so it's not only, you know, larger areas in the continental
United States but things that are happening in this State.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. The, the other question that I had, you
probably don't have this information, you know, when we do our Maui Island
Plan, you know, we looking at one of the important things that I think we need to
consider is economic development. So, I, I, I'm hearing you giving us testimony
in, in areas, you know, away from the State of Hawaii and I'm just curious as far
as their economic development, because I think we all understand that California
is in such bad shape -MS. BOWIE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --and you know, in, in some of these
communities that you mentioned, you know, how they doing in regards to their
general plan?
MS. BOWIE: Well, I'll tell you when I Googled a lot of this information, what I saw in a
lot of, you know, very recent information that is posted on their websites, that
they're suffering the same economic issues and they are very much like us in
saying that we need a plan that really lays out where the development will go in
the future because of infrastructure, what will come back on cost to taxpayers if
we're spreading out into areas, and so again, I think detail is important in this.
And then much similarity in people saying they want to preserve their
environmental quality of life as well, so the greenbelts and regional parks, all of
those things, a lot of similarities, I mean I think quality of life is what everybody's
looking for.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, and I agree. Thank you for your
testimony.
MS. BOWIE: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR BAISA: Any further questions? Mr. Couch.
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Ms. Bowie for being
here. You know, some of those places you named, especially the bigger ones, did
they have community plans as well or, or were they -MS. BOWIE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --that was their community plan?
MS. BOWIE: No. A number of them then go on into community plans as well.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: San Diego and Santa Barbara?
MS. BOWIE: Right. Right.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
MS. BOWIE: And I think with San Diego, Santa Barbara again they're, they're places
that need to preserve their quality of life for tourism as well being a real driving
vehicle.
CHAIR BALSA: Further questions for our testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much.
Our next testifier is Tamara Paltin and she'll be followed by Dick Mayer. Good
afternoon.
MS. PALTIN: Good afternoon. Thank you for having me. My name is Tamara Paltin.
I'm here in my capacity as a president of the Save Honolua Coalition and also as a
member of the Maui Nui Marine Resource Council. And I'm very thankful for
this General Plan process. It was kind of the catalyst for the whole formation of
the Save Honolua Coalition along with Elle Cochran. Pretty much I
wholeheartedly support the past three testifiers, everything that they said. And
another point that I was talking with Mr. Dick Mayer before the hearing started,
the last General Plan in 1991 was only 21 pages long, and when we as the
Coalition were reviewing it in ways that it could help protect Honolua, all the
right words were inside of that plan, but without the detail, it's almost like the
right words didn't matter, you know. So, in land use planning, the details are very
important and I can't think of any reason why you would want to take out maps or
details other than...I just can't think of a reason. But, you know, if you're talking
about economic development especially in Maui, the environment is the economy
and the whole reason that people come to Maui is because it's special; it's not like
anyplace else. And when we were involved in the process in...from '07 to now
and going to Spreckelsville or Lahaina Civic, pretty much everyone was saying,
it's, you know, the small towns that they appreciate, and if it's not the people that
you're going to listen to and it's just one person or a few developers, the
whole...to me the whole credibility of the process is kind of corrupted, you know.
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Like why would anyone want to be involved in the process from '07 to '08, '09,
'10 and so forth if all the groundwork gets ignored or pushed to the side at the last
minute, you know, or why not everybody jump in on the last minute to make their
point? So, I think even though it's not done `til the second reading we need to
keep in the details all the way 'til the end. Don't ever take 'em out. That's it.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any questions for our testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Our next testifier is Dick Mayer and he'll be followed by Charlie Jencks. Good
afternoon.
MR. MAYER: Good afternoon, Chair and Members of the Council. I talked to Tamara
before the meeting and I was very impressed by the fact that she's giving birth
this weekend and is able to come down here because she cares about what
happens for the future of her child so, that's something that I think we all have to
listen to. I have several items I would like to touch on. I look at the Maui...at the
Maui Island Plan as really a framework for all of the community plans, that it will
be giving the overall guidance and I think that was the intent and that's why for
the first time the, the Ordinance read that we're going to have a Maui Island Plan
to tie together the community...the various communities to give some consistency
and definition so that we have ideas of what an urban, urban area is or a rural
area, agricultural area, what it would mean when the various community
plans...so you don't have to do that six times again when each of the community
plans come through. And so I think the stands are different...are, are important.
Table 8 - 2 and I've given you all a version that's different than any one you've
seen before, and what I did was I listened to Director Spence and also obviously
have participated with the GPAC in, in all its discussions and its
recommendations. And I'm speaking really as an individual now, not as the
vice-chair of GPAC, and I think there's one particular area where Mr. Spence
made a very good point and I want to call it to your attention. That is within the
rural designation. He wanted to make it one category, a Rural Growth Boundary
and not make the differentiation between Rural Service Centers and Residential
Areas. I think the concepts are very valid and GPAC did a good job in pointing
that out with the help of the staff, but I think that those designations exactly
should be done at the community plan level, and that's why I, I've put 'em on the
side there but given the definitions so that when you give to each community
plan, a delegation, do your job, they will have some terminology to work with.
One thing that we did hear from many of the people who testified to the GPAC
was country towns, places like let's say, Makawao or Haiku or Paia, traditional
country towns. And I think we need a separate category for them and they're not
urban. It's not like Wailuku or Kahului or Lahaina. That there is a separate...a
distinct difference between those traditional towns and some of the more urban
areas, and that's why there are three growth boundary areas that I'm going to
suggest to you that when you look at the maps. Then outside and why the rest of
that chart is there and I know Mr. Spence has dispensed with the sort of the
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bottom half of that chart, just having one area, the Protection Area, outside of the
Urban Growth Boundaries and the Rural Growth Boundaries, we have to know
what's going on there. It's not just wilderness and so that's why there are these
separate categories such as greenbelts, greenways, sensitive lands, et cetera that
are indicated on this particular chart. And finally at the bottom of that chart is the,
is the agricultural area, and the original terminology was that this was going to be
an overlay district. And that would, would perhaps be complicating but I do think
that the distinctions among the different agricultural areas are important, and
that's why I put down guidelines so that when a developer comes to you and says
I want to change my this agricultural land to whatever it might be, shopping
center or a residential area, you will have some guidelines to say, you know,
maybe this agricultural land is so important we should keep it. It's not rigid but it
does give you the flexibility and the Planning Commissioners flexibility with the
decision-making that you'll be doing. So, I look at this as a compromise. You
have in front of you Table 8 - 2 in your books that was originally from the, from
the Planning Director, 2010, and you'll have Mr. Spence's recommendations as
well. I would urge you to take a look at this seriously. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BALSA: Thank you very much. Hang on. Any questions? Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Mr. Mayer, for being
here. You made a comment and I just wanted to ask you with your vice-chair hat
now of the GPAC. You said something about if a developer comes and wants to
change some ag land and add a shopping center, that would be something would
be something outside the Urban Growth Boundaries so wouldn't it be almost
impossible to do something like that outside of the Urban Growth Boundaries,
that's why we have the boundaries?
MR. MAYER: No. I, I said that with the regard to the areas in green on that chart with
regard to the Protection Areas. Those would be outside the Urban Growth
Boundary. Agricultural land could be even within an Urban Growth Boundary
and you may say that particular section, for example, let's just say in Central
Maui someplace, you may say we have to be a little more careful of this, we
shouldn't just be an industrial zone or something within that area, so that if you
look at the...this is really looking at the land quality. And you may decide that if
somebody comes in and, and says something this might be use...it might be okay
to do some low intensity stuff or maybe even community gardens or something of
that sort, so it would be wise for you to know on a reference map what the
agricultural land is, the quality of it and what, what's important to this, but not
necessarily binding on the decision-making.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So you're, you're saying that...I mean having looked at
the map, I didn't see a whole lot of, but maybe I, I have to double check. But ag
land there will be ag land inside the Urban Growth Boundary because of the...
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MR. MAYER: Because the, because the Urban Growth Boundaries right now go out
beyond all of our urban areas -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. MAYER: --and so within that land, there may be some lands that are, are, are, are
not productive, not at all useful, great place to put let's say, residences and
housing and whatever, but there may be some other parts of that area within the
growth boundary that you may say we don't have to fill all of it up with, with
urban, high-density stuff; we may want to keep this as a, as a special area. At
least it gives you the reference.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. MAYER: And that's why I say...and, and that would also go beyond the, the,
the...and the planners and the Planning Commission will get requests down the
road over this 20 year period, for maybe expanding the Urban Growth Boundary
at some point, because the Urban, the, the Urban Growth Boundaries are not rigid
in the sense that, that, that they're going to be there for the next 20 years. There
are provisions in the law that would allow those Urban Growth Boundaries or, or
allow the whole Plan to be updated and so, it's useful for you to know where
those agricultural lands are.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Further questions for Mr. Mayer? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MR. MAYER: Thank you and best wishes.
CHAIR BAISA: And next testifier is Charlie Jencks and he will be followed by Lloyd
Sodetani.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon.
MR. JENCKS: Good afternoon. My name is Charlie Jencks. I'm here representing the
Puunani project on behalf of the three partners, Towne Development, II Wai Hui,
and Endurance Partners. Speaking in support of Puunani as it's described in
Chapter 8 of the Maui Island Plan, I'm going to hand out a map that I'd like to, to
briefly take a look at today. Just one map that I'm going to, I'm going to
reference. The Planning Department has proposed Urban Growth Boundaries for
the Puunani project area, and we pretty much agree with two general areas that we
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would like to modify. First of all, the Urban Growth Area that they put on their
map is a total of 53 acres. It's right at the corner of Kuikahi and H'piilani
Highway. That area needs to be enlarged to 70 acres to address infrastructure,
drainage basins, and a setback from the highway getting us up to a total of
70 acres. So, by the time you take the 70 and net out drainage improvements, the
buffer and infrastructure, you get back to about 56 acres so, we're pretty close on
the net size but we'd like to gross it up to 70 to make it a viable project for about
450 multi-family units that will be comprised of, of veterans, senior housing,
affordable and market-rate affordable, market-rate housing. The other comment
is with regard to the balance of the area in Puunani. The Planning Department has
left it as Ag and some discussions with Director Spence and some of you, we've
brought up the idea of transitioning from Kehalani to Waikapu and making this
area instead of Ag, which could be an agricultural subdivision, of course, making
it Rural and transitioning from Kehalani towards Waikapu with a series of
densities, maybe starting at half acre going to one-acre to two-acre lots in this
rural area so that you would have a designation that you could control. You
wouldn't have ag immediately adjacent to urban uses which exists off of Kuikahi
and in our proposed urban area as well as down adjacent to the highway in the
Waiolani, Waikapu area. We think that the idea of a transitional land use area
such as Rural makes a lot of sense. You control the land uses. You eliminate the
conflicts between, between agriculture and urban. Agricultural is, is
unconstrained by the Code, the Right to Farm Act. You can in effect have a pig
farm adjacent to a multi-family or single-family homes in Waikapu. It's not a
good idea. So, the idea of a transitional area which is the green area on the map,
making that a Rural Boundary Area would allow for you to provide land uses that
are consistent in the transition along with density from Kehalani to the Waikapu
agricultural area. So, I've handed out the map. We would appreciate you taking a
look at the map and considering that in the context of your discussions on the
Puunani project area.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Jencks. Any questions? Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. and I guess this is where I would ask, you would
rather us...they're going be on the list and then when they come back we have --

CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --the questions we...
CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll wait `til then to...
- 13 -

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 14, 2012

CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Any further questions for Mr. Jencks?
Seeing none, Mr. Jencks, of course you'll be put on that list.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: And the next testifier is Lloyd Sodetani and he'll be followed by
Christopher Lau. Good afternoon.
MR. SODETANI: Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the Council. My
name is Lloyd Sodetani. I am a General Partner for Association of II Wai Hui
which is a owner, part owner of the project that we're talking about. In addition
to that, I currently chair the Office of Veterans Services, State Advisory Board to
the Governor, and my presentation today will be basically on the need for
veterans' housing. There has always been a strong need for veteran housing. I've
been an advocate for veterans' housing for many, many years. I served 31 years
in service either as a...on active duty as a guardsman and as a reservist. So, I
retired as a colonel and I have found all of the inequities that have existed
throughout our State with regard to the treatment of veterans. I am proposing to
have this Plan changed, as Mr. Jencks proposed, with regard to that 70-acre plus
that would allow for affordable veteran housing, senior housing and veteran
housing. We would like to include this so that we will be able to provide the
needs that can be met through, for veterans. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much Questions for Mr. Sodetani? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Sodetani for being
here. In this map you showing us here, the veterans basically are the two areas for
which you have M...MVNBX [sic], right?
MR. SODETANI: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct. So, how many...and just...and I
didn't want to get too deep detail, but how many veterans would be served for
that? How many housing complexes would you be able to build on that?
MR. SODETANI: We were looking at 250 originally; however, because...let me go
back some. This applies to the Workforce Housing law that was passed several
years ago that required 50 percent housing. We amended our plan to try to meet
those housing requirements, but it became unsatisfactory because the density was
too large. Our original proposal was to have this rural setting and also this
multi-family complex that would provide for senior housing and veteran housing
specifically, not for affordable housing for those who are just starting anew. I
think there are other developers who are providing for that, but we wanted to
- 14 -

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 14, 2012

concentrate on senior housing and veteran housing. Now I know that there are
senior developments that are available on Maui, but it's...there's a waitlist of
18 months to 2 years to get into those housing facilities. It's a, it's a need that
needs to be filled. We have currently 12,000 veterans on Maui. We're going to
have more, I promise you, and for that reason I think we need to be addressing
that problem right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And Mr. Sodetani, is this tied in in any way with
the Veterans Service Center they looking at building by Maui High School?
MR. SODETANI: No, that's an entirely different matter. I, I'm involved in that also.
I -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SODETANI: --in fact, I worked on that with Randy Yamanuha, Maui High School
Principal and Department of Education, Department of Defense, and also the
Veterans Administration...Veterans Affairs. That is a multi-service complex -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SODETANI: --that would move the Veterans Clinic to that location, the Vet Center
in Wailuku, and also the Office of Veterans Services Office to that Maui High
School complex. That would also provide for a internship program for the
students at Maui High School. In addition to that, we're looking for a community
center, veterans center we would call it, approximately half the size of McWayne
Center in Paukukalo that would be served as a meeting place for our veterans. In
addition to that, we would also have eventually a care home for, for veterans as,
as we do at, on the Big Island, the Okutsu Center next to the Hilo Hospital. And
that would be for long-term care.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And my final question to you, the configuration
you have here versus the one the Planning Department gave us which elongates
all the way up Kuikahi to the top of the...next to the reservoir. That is all sloppy
hill and very different... difficult terrain to build into, especially if you're looking
for a veterans and elderly people, and also the reason you wanted it down here is
close proximity to all the new shopping complexes, commercial entities and
professional buildings that are going to be built down here by Waiale.
MR. SODETANI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
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CHAIR BAISA: Chair would like to remind Members that we don't want to get into
discussing the real, the nuances of the project. These folks will be given an
opportunity to come back. Today we want to focus on gathering the changes that
people want to make. Just...let's get a list so we know.
MR. SODETANI: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Sodetani. Next testifier is Christopher Lau and he'll be
followed by Dave DeLeon.
MR. LAU: Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the Committee. My name is
Christopher Lau. I'm an executive vice-president of Towne Development of
Hawaii. Madam Chair, I concur with the statements previously made by
Mr. Sodetani and, and Mr. Jencks, and I'll defer further testimony to the
appropriate time when you do talk about the individual projects.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, sir. Members, anything you need from
Mr. Lau? Otherwise, thank you very much. Our next testifier is Dave DeLeon
and he'll be followed by Jennifer...I think it's Freeman.
MR. DELEON: I'm Dave DeLeon representing the Realtors Association of Maui. And
no, I guess I missed the Facebook page so I didn't get the message. I'm here
today to address two issues related to the proposed Maui Island Plan. RAM
fundamentally supports the position taken by the Planning Director Will Spence
and as recently articulated in the editorial in The Maui News. The proposed Plan
is too specific to function as a truly general plan. As Mr. Spence has pointed out,
if this legislation is adopted as codified, it will and, and...if this...if this
legislation is adopted and codified as is, it will amount to another...yet another
layer of zoning. The last thing our land use system needs is yet another layer of
regulation and micromanagement. For a generation, Maui County political
leaders have recognized the need to streamline our land use regulatory
requirements. If passed as is, this Plan will do exactly the opposite of that,
creating yet another layer...another...additional layers of rules and regulations
that will cause additional delay and an uncertainty in, to the existing system. We
understand the urgency the Council must feel to move this complex task off your
desks. Rather than proposing a major redrafting of the, of the document at this
time, we would like to suggest that the Council surgically codify only those
elements of the plan necessary for the community plans to proceed, elements like
the Urban and Rural Growth Boundaries, and leave the rest of the plan as
non-binding guidance to the development of the individual, much more specific
community plans. RAM also wishes to reiterate its support of the County's
delineating this Important Agricultural Lands in this plan and for moving away
from... and moving many non-important, small-lot agriculture lands to Rural
classification. For too long, much of Maui County has been classified as
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Agriculture when in fact, it's actually Rural in character. This is an artifact of the
concept of Ag being the default setting for all properties that were neither Urban
or, or Conservation. Many of the small-lot properties falling into this category
will never truly be farmed, because they are too small to be economically viable,
are occupied by non-farmers, are too expensive to make economic sense as farms,
lack water to truly farming them, or all of the above. Each of these farms are
regulated by the Planning Department and as you were reminded a few days ago,
there are costs associated with that regulation. To what end? If the County will
recognize these properties for what they are --rural-- then much of the cost in the
unnecessary regulation will go away. Last year Maui County approved new 2-,
5-, 10-acre Rural zoning categories. These new categories were a necessary step
to allow for the transformation from Ag to Rural classifications without
increasing density. The Planning Director is proposing the next step, classifying
these properties as Rural in this plan. RAM supports that proposal.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Questions for our testifier? Seeing none, Mr. DeLeon,
thank you.
MR. DELEON: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Our next testifier is Jennifer Freeman and she'll be followed by Colette
Evans. Good afternoon.
MS. FREEMAN: Good afternoon. My name is Jennifer Freeman and I am a resident of
Makawao. I am submitting testimony today regarding the Growth Boundary
maps specifically. My concern is that the Growth Boundary maps do not reflect
the other approximately 12,000 units that are already approved by the County. By
including this information on the map, it would show more clearly how many
additional units might be needed and in what regions. Less than 12,000 units will
probably be built, but the point is that they can be and to ignore their existence
while addressing what growth can occur where is a strong oversight. Areas with
approved plans include Kehalani, Maui Lath, Makena, and Kapalua among others.
For these reasons I urge the Council to insist the Planning Department include all
the approved areas on the maps being submitted for review. Thank you for your
time and attention to this matter.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any questions? Seeing none, thank you. Our next testifier
is Colette Evans and she'll be followed by Anna Maria Kahalekulu. Good
afternoon.
MS. EVANS: Good afternoon. Aloha.
CHAIR BAISA: Aloha.
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MS. EVANS: Good afternoon, Council members. My name is Colette Evans and I'm a
resident of Makawao. I'm here today even though I don't get paid for it. I have
no personal financial interest in being here, but I just wanted to come down to
make it really clear and state my feelings about how important the Maui Island
Plan ratification and successful enforcement is to me and to many people who
I've spoken to over recent months. In a nutshell, I am here to urge the Council to
take the focus off rewriting and editing the Maui Island Plan verbiage and onto
the efficacy of the maps. Because I want you to ratify the Maui Island Plan this
year, I am not supposed to tell you that I find it redundant and laborious to read.
I'm the first one to admit I want to take out my red editor's pen and streamline the
whole thing; that's my tendency, but I'm here to tell you that is not only
unnecessary, it's a waste of time, and I want to urge you not to concede to
pressures that say otherwise. Coalescing hundreds if not thousands of people, of
voices and including the methodology by which the Maui Island Plan comes to its
findings is no small feat and bound to take up some air time. In short, the Maui
Island Plan accomplishes many goals in one document and as is already been
pointed out, it's not even that long in relationship to other plans. I ask you to
consider this when reading and critiquing the Plan of the verbiage, the Plan
verbiage. The Plan is actually quite exacting and unequivocal in its policy
statements. Does it matter there's a redundancy in expressing what the residents
of Maui wish see? Maybe the repetition itself is pointing to something we should
pay attention to, not edit. After all, haven't these same things been roughshod
over time and again, decade after decade with development? Maybe the, maybe
consider the repetition to be a plea of enforcement. In terms of the at times
laborious sighting of the methodology, maybe it would be better to see it as proof
of the level of consideration put into the Plan by the many voices it represents.
We must be able to see what it is that we are trying to protect in order to make
wise decisions and enforce policy. As is in the case with all things, the map is not
the territory, which is precisely why we need to reflect on the Growth Boundary
maps what has already been approved and what it is that we want to protect. To
that end, I urge the Council to have the Planning Department present maps that
include the previously approved housing developments, as Jennifer Freeman
mentioned, as well as key features such as county town designation, greenways
and greenbelts, ecologically sensitive areas, and prime agricultural, as has been
pointed out, with quality soil and access to water. This is how we guide the Plan.
This is how we enforce the Plan. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Members, questions for testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Our next testifier is David...I'm sorry, Anna Maria Kahalekulu and
she'll be followed by David Mogilefsky.
MS. KAHALEKULU: Good afternoon.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon.
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MS. KAHALEKULU: Aloha kakou. My name is Anna Maria Kahalekulu and I am
testifying today as an individual and on behalf of my family We are residents of
upper Waiehu. We are opposed to the revised 2012 Rural Growth Boundary in
the area of upper Waiehu or rural Wailuku as stated on the map. This boundary
expands over Waiehu Stream and no longer considers the stream as sensitive
lands as in the 2010 version. Further, the 2012 version does not include the
extensive classifications of preservation lands found in the 2010 version.
Inclusion of sensitive lands, greenbelts and greenways in addition to preserves
and regional parks in the actual maps used for planning is essential to ensure that
specific Maui lands remain protected from future development. Secondly, in light
of the unsuccessful Hale Mua project, we question the continued need for that site
to remain for urban...remain entitled for urban development. From what I
understand, water and title were the main issues standing in the way of Hale Mua,
and today they are still issues for that site in addition to our already stressed
infrastructure in the area. What's more important is that land is what the County
does consider prime and productive agricultural land, and it is and always will be
culturally significant land as well. Lastly, the ahupuaa of Waiehu has been seen
as an extension of Wailuku for many years. Lower Waiehu has already been
swallowed by Wailuku sprawl. While we understand that this was an effort to
provide housing for our citizens of Maui County, we also see an opportunity to
preserve the agricultural lands that are left of Waiehu today. Waiehu has been an
important agricultural basket for this island for centuries. Upper Waiehu itself
may still be a small community with only a handful of old families remaining, but
we are still there and the significance of this area remains in our memories and is
worthy of preservation. The Wailuku rural designation does not give that
area...or I guess the Wailuku rural name does not give that area a chance to tell its
story. I do commend all of you for the years of work and for the many voices that
have gone into this Plan. I realize it is a daunting task and I think you have done
well so far; however, I hope for the best and I hope that these growth boundaries
do their job to preserve what we have left untouched so that all our children can
understand the greatness of our aina. I came before you all today on behalf of my
family to give upper Waiehu a voice in the Maui Island Plan, because it appears
that has not had a voice before now. We were raised out of the plantation and
since their closure our area has been targeted for development. I just want more
for our island and more for that area. I'm a graduate of CU Leeds School of
Business. I am not necessarily against change and against development, but I am
tied to this land for generations and I want this area of Na Wai Eha to remain or to
continue to have the actual waters and the land that makes it so important and not
to be only known as the names...by the names of its subdivisions. Thank you for
your time.

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 14, 2012

CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any questions for our testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Our next testifier is David Mogilefsky and he'll be followed by Tom
Cannon. Good afternoon.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Good afternoon, Chair and Council members. Thank you. I'm
here speaking only on my own behalf. Due in large part to a community event
called Plan Story, I became interested in the work of the General Plan Advisory
Committee at the very beginning. Over several years, I attended a great many
GPAC meetings, probably in excess of 90 percent of all meetings. I saw the
committee struggle to organize and formulate rules for its operation. It appeared
to me that of the 25 members, about half lean toward more preservation and about
half lean toward keeping up the pace of development. I saw the GPAC members
spend hundreds of hours listening to testimony, discussing various proposals, and
voting. Over time, I began to notice that the differences between the preservation
members and the development members were narrowing. A consensus was
building. That consensus resulted in the proposed plan you have before you, and
it was done at a tremendous investment of County time and money. Now at this
Committee's meetings, I've heard the Planning Director say that the work of the
General Plan Advisory Committee is confusing, complicated, has too many
layers, should not be another layer of zoning, and has "too many details on
minutia". He wants to simplify it. Well, the future of Maui is not simple, that's
why the plan took years to complete. We are planning the future of the best
island in the world. People come from all over the world to visit and admire
Maui, and we are fortunate enough to live here. Maui is worth extra effort. The
General Plan is not required to be simple. From what I have seen at these
meetings, the Planning Director has pitted himself against key elements of the
GPAC plan, something I don't think any of the 25 members ever imagined would
happen. The process has become unfair to the people of Maui. I think GPAC
should have a permanent place at the head table here so that all of the members
can have a voice. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Members, questions for our testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Our next testifier is Tom Cannon and Mr. Cannon will be followed by
Lucienne de Naie.
MR. CANNON: Aloha, Chair Baisa and Committee members. I'm Tom Cannon,
Wailuku-born architect and land planner and Chair of the Maui General Plan
Advisory Committee or GPAC. GPAC is a 25 member, volunteer advisory
committee formed to represent the wishes of Maui's residents. One strongly held
policy recommended by GPAC read perpetuate the authentic character and
historic integrity of Maui County's small towns. My recollection is this policy
was validated by unanimous vote. One reason Urban Growth Boundaries have
become a required planning tool on Maui is to ensure that our towns don't grow
into one another so that they...as they are close to doing now in Wailuku, Kahului
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and as the various communities of Kihei have done. One definition of sprawl is
for small towns to be gobbled up by unbridled growth, losing their traditional,
individual identities. Maui really doesn't have many truly urban areas, so perhaps
the term "urban growth" suggests to some that we want to become more urban or
more like Oahu. In keeping with our...our policy, GPAC used the UGB tool in
Central Maui to provide town oriented Urban Growth Boundaries to help ensure
Waikapu remains separate from Wailuku, Wailuku separate from Waiehu with an
open space of the Wailuku river as the natural and traditional separation line, and
Waiehu separate from Waihee, Wailuku from Kahului, and Kahului from
Spreckelsville. GPAC put great effort into delineating these UGBs. We've still
allowed for substantial additional growth. These are Maui's version of urban, an
urban that retains our traditional town identities and open spaces between them as
much as possible, as much as still possible. Now we see the big bag Los Angeles'
style UGB back in the plans where most of these towns are in one massive UGB
with no delineation of our towns. If rural atmosphere is our goal, we need
Maui-style UGBs as recommended by GPAC. The majority of GPAC envision
Maui as an innovative model of sustainable island living, where by careful
planning, careful island-based planning, we can maintain our traditional small
towns and the open spaces between them. Wailuku is not Waikapu so use UGB
planning as a tool to perpetuate that. If more space is needed for a desired
population number rather than a projected population, the planning principal that
gave rise to growth boundaries dictates that making a new, making a new town
elsewhere with open space around it. I mentioned previously that Henry Ford
said if I ask them what they wanted, they would have told me faster horses. Well,
GPAC envisioned connecting Maui's distant small towns to each other with
modern, convenient, fuel-efficient, non-automobile transit moving in corridors set
aside now in the Maui Island Plan. In order for this modern system to be
affordable, the corridors must be set aside now while the route can traverse
non-urban, open space land for the most part. Some of the earliest trains west of
the Rockies were right here on Maui back in the 1800's. We need to boldly go
beyond horses, beyond driving long distances, packed in like sardines on some
over-taxed road or freeway. We need to think like Henry Ford and Maui's
locomotive pioneers to open our minds to the next paradigm. Would you rather
take a 10 minute ride to the parking garage in Haiku, jump on the magnetically
levitated, fuel-efficient train, check out Facebook and the whales in Maalaea Bay
as you whiz to Lahaina in 20 minutes, where you catch a rickshaw to Front Street,
or would you rather fight traffic for an hour and spend half your paycheck on gas
and still have to pay for parking when you get there. Maui is the second largest
Hawaiian island. We need this within our 20 plan...20-year planning horizon for
the Maui Island Plan so, we need you to include the corridors now. If you don't
include them, we will pay much more later both financially and environmentally
for ugly concrete freeways. One modern train could take the place of eight lanes
of freeway. We don't need to build it tomorrow but we need to plan for it now to
make it possible later, a system completely separate from our roads to move
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people, cargo, and utilities safely, efficiently, quickly, and conveniently between
distant regions. Small towns, open space, small town, open space, that's island
style. Getting around in ways that best use technology to maintain and improve
our Maui sense of place, that's Maui style, too. Maui...small Maui leaped ahead
for most of the world before...of most of the world before with the locomotive
out to Hamakuapoko in the mid-1800's. We can do it again with a train to
Lahaina-Kapalua and Kihei-Makena but only by planning. No plan, no can. The
advice from GPAC is to use UGBs to maintain the distinctive identities of our
small towns and rural sense of place and to provide transit corridors now that will
eventually move people conveniently and efficiently between our distant regions
and thereby avoid the need of freeways. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Cannon. Any comments or questions? Thank you very
much.
MR. CANNON: Thank you, too.
CHAIR BAISA: Our next testifier is Lucienne de Naie and she'll be followed by
Punahele Hoopii. Good afternoon.
MS. DE NAIE: Good afternoon, Chair Baisa and Members of the Committee. My name
is Lucienne de Naie. I'm testifying on my own behalf. I did pass out testimony
when I came so, it's one page, hopefully easy to follow. I'm just here to address
that Table 8-2 which lists the types of growth boundaries, and it really also lists
more than growth boundaries, it lists land planning forms that the Directed
Growth maps will portray or be shaped by. And I just wanted to remind
everybody that throughout this planning process where, you know, GPAC
members and the public; we had charettes, we had all these different things, we
were told that our maps...our Directed Growth maps were going to show two
things, and no, this was not just Urban and Rural Growth Boundaries. They were
going to show where we wanted and supported development, and those were the
Urban and Rural Growth Boundaries, and they were going to show where we
were going to protect from development, where we were going to void
development. And the way we determined this is there were like ten good points.
It said development should, should meet these criteria. If it doesn't, this isn't a
good place for development. So, I'm here to urge you that it's important to have
the not-to-be-developed characteristics on the maps as well as the
to-be-developed, because most of us will not be here when some of these
decisions are made. They won't know our intention. They won't know that we
meant for them to look at some other chapter and see some other language about
sensitive lands or wetlands or slopes or Ag lands. What they'll know is oh, this is
the map that's in the Maui Island Plan. It's supposed to be telling us, you know,
enough to make our decision so, Mr. Couch had a question about would there be
any ag land in the Urban Growth Boundaries. Just check out West Maui, you're
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going to find plenty of it. So, you should have some reference to make that
decision. What kind of ag land is it? Is it good for development, bad for
development? How much can we sacrifice? These are important things to be
informed so, we've been told that we have everything we need in Chapter 7. We
have descriptions of ag land, rural land, urban land and so we don't have to
include it in this chart in, in Chapter 8, but I just think that that's really not how
the language works. The, the, the chart and language...seven is, is about the
policies kind of relating to these categories. Now we're talking about taking those
policies and using them to shape Directed Growth so, we shouldn't just like now
get rid of reference to a greenbelt when a greenbelt is an important policy
consideration. In fact, greenbelts are specifically mentioned in a number of the
community plans, and community plans tell us where they want them so, if we
want to respect these community plans, everyone says oh, let's just wait `til the
community plans decide some of these things. Well, I think if we look at the
community plans, we'll find they have decided some of these things. So, let's
keep it the primary purpose of the Maui Island Plan. It's to establish a
manage...I'm quoting, directed growth strategy to accommodate population and
employment in a manner that's physically prudent, safeguards the island's natural
and cultural resources, enhances the built environment, preserves land use
opportunities for future generations. So, it needs to be built on these sound
planning processes. We need to know where sensitive lands are. We need to
know where the community wants greenbelts and separations between
communities. We need to know more than just where a regional park or a
vaguely defined preservation area is, and open space, that refers to golf courses
and like Maui Lath has lot of open space. It's called a golf course. Is it what the
citizens of Waikapu want for open space? Probably not so, let's define these
terms. They're well-defined in Table 8-2 and let's just use those definitions as
has been working all along and has been supported by our previous Planning
Directors. Thank you very much and please consider the amended version that
you were passed out today.
CHAIR BAISA:. Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. de Naie? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Our next testifier is Punahele Hoopii and she'll be
followed by Amy Chang. Good afternoon.
MS. HOOPII: Good afternoon. Aloha, Council members. Thank you for having me
today. My name is Punahele Hoopii. I am here as an individual and I represent
my family whose ancestral lands come from the area of Kahakuloa, and I'm not
well-versed, you know, the things that happen here so it will be short and sweet.
But my main concern is the lack of information I think in those communities, in
that community of Kahakuloa, and we just kind of found out about all this not too
long ago like last week and kind of wanted to come out and represent our
community. So, I guess my, my main concern is just informing the people in the
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areas and having those, that knowledge passed onto the people of how this...these
things may affect our communities there. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Seeing none, Punahele, thank
you very much for coming. Our next testifier is Amy Chang and she'll be
followed by Chris Hart. Good afternoon.
MS. CHANG: Aloha, everyone. So, I just recently became involved because I'm...love
this island and I'm still educating myself about Maui Island Plan. But I did want
to refer to the previous speaker, because I, I remember at the last meeting we
heard that Waihee Association, those three men that came up and spoke and he
said something about oh, somebody asked him are they okay with the 2010
version of the maps, and he said, oh, yeah, we're okay. But at the same time I
heard --I forget, what is it, Chris?-- he spoke about how he wanted mauka to
makai, a mauka to makai is, is the ultimate Hawaiian concept of
preservation...it's, and it's not going to be honored if the whole thing is
redistricted as rural, because rural is, as you saw, the real estate agents' delight
and so, I think there's a lot of ignorance actually, a lot of people don't know what
these things mean. And I just want to say that I, I did read the recent paper where
Will Spence said that he doesn't want sprawl and he wants to support, you know,
open spaces in between towns and yet, I notice on his map there's no greenbelts;
there's no greenways so, why is that? That's my question 'cause the other thing is
that unless it's defensible by law it doesn't really mean anything; unless a lawyer
can actually prove it, it won't mean anything. So, the other thing I...it seems like
that would bring a lot of clarity for those of us who can't deal with all the words is
just to have a real comprehensive map where there's one map that you can see
where the boundaries are, you can see what the units also that are approved, I
heard 12,000 units, well, someone else said actually there's already 20,000 units
approved, and then I heard another criticism is that it's a no growth plan if it's
passed. But 20,000 units already approved seems like a lot of economic
development to me or are those really approved? So the map seems like it would
just bring a lot clarity for a lot of people, because it's something that you can
actually look at and see so that's my request. And again, I just want to point out
that the facts that Irene Bowie said about the pages for like Kauai was 350 pages
and Big Island was something like 420 something or another but that's actually
puts Maui's plan at 368 pages, very average. So, thank you very much for your
work and thank you for listening to my concerns.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Members, any questions for our testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Our next testifier is Chris Hart and he'll be followed by
Hannah Bernard. Good afternoon.
MR. HART: Good afternoon, Madam Chair and, and Members of the General Plan
Committee. My name is Chris Hart. I'm a landscape architect and land planner
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in the community. I just really wanted to kind of continue on from my testimony
the last time. I really believe that land planning as a profession is an evolving
process and we as planners are learning a lot every day, every year. And the, the
basic issues that we learn, we learn from our experiences and we learn how better
to, to plan and to articulate what needs to be important and established in a
context of a plan. That's why plans become more complex, and I believe that
what Dick Mayer said is that the Island Plan is a framework and it will be the
framework for the implementation of the community plans, the six community
plans on Maui. I think it's important also to understand that we have a land use
guidance system that has been established in Hawaii that Maui County is part of.
Act 205 is our State Land Use law. In 1962, the four districts, the Urban, Rural,
Agriculture and Conservation were created. In 1964, the maps were created.
Now growth happens in the Urban and Rural Districts, that's where growth occurs
and Rural is a transition between Urban and Agriculture. In 1987, we adopted in
Maui County the Country Town Business District Zoning Ordinance so, rural
communities were called Country Towns not rural towns, Country Towns. In
1992, we did a comprehensive update of the community plans, all of them, and
Country Town definition is incorporated in all of our community plans.
Everybody knows what a Country Town is. Makawao, Paia, they're all Country
Towns. In 2006, Ordinance No. 53 was adopted. This is the General Plan
Ordinance. It has a lot in it, and I will point out that the first Administration of
Mayor Alan Arakawa was the time of the adoption of that Ordinance and also that
there are four current Council men who voted "aye" on that ordinance. Now
that's a complex Ordinance and you should read that Ordinance because it sets
forth the enabling...the plan formulation process and the enabling process for the
Maui Island Plan, and it is the intent of the Plan that it would be adopted by
ordinance, legislatively, not as a policy. I think that it's also important to realize
that in the context of the Directed and Growth Plans that are called for in the
Ordinance, that Urban and Rural are the designations. Those Urban and Rural
designations go back to the land use law. That's what we base our land use
guidance system on in Maui County. I, I really am opposed to looking at, let's
say, a community like Waikapu and saying that the urban area of Waikapu, which
I consider a country village, there's no main street, no sense of place, should be
called rural. Why would you add the confusion of an issue of conformity to
something like that. You have an urban area already that exists; it's a traditional
country village and you call it rural. You shouldn't do that. That, that's going to
cause more confusion. The other issue is that the community basically proposes
that they would like to see Waikapu become a Country Town with a sense of
place, a main street, and there is a plan for that and there is an expanded Urban
Growth Boundary for that in the, in the maps that were prepared back 2010. And
I ask you to go back to the recommendation that was made by the Maui County
Planning Commission. They recommended approval of the Maui Island Plan and
those maps are available to you and that plan is available to you. And that to me
is what the Council should be basing its decision-making on. That's the process,
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the General Plan Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, the Maui
County Council to legislatively adopt the Plan. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any questions for testifier? Seeing none, Chris, thank you
very much. Our next testifier is Hannah Bernard and she'll be followed by Bill
Greenleaf. Good afternoon.
MS. BERNARD: Good afternoon, Madam Chair, Council members. Thank you so
much for this opportunity to testify once again on this very important issue that
many of us have been involved with for years, many of you. I'm speaking on
behalf of Hawaii Wildlife Fund and I'm the president, and I'm also on a number
of boards of many of our nonprofits of Maui. All of our work that Hawaii
Wildlife Fund does is community driven and it's community supported. We have
thousands of volunteers we've worked with over the last 16 years on the Big
Island and Maui. And all of our community groups were heavily involved in this
process. For years all of the work that we were doing to try and support taking
care of our natural resources, our special environment, our special creatures and
marine life that we get to live with, everything that we do, it was all intertwined
and so everybody was involved. There were so many people involved that I was
so proud of the process. I was engaged of course and I was...I testified many
times and it, and it definitely took, it took a toll out of many of our lives because
of the time that we all put into this process, and so I just cannot strongly enough
urge this Committee to not simplify the language and to not take out parts of the
maps that this group and our community labored over for hours and years and
years. And so, it, it was a really admirable process and one that engaged every
facet of our community except, you know, there were a few communities who, as
we heard, maybe weren't engaged and involved this whole time but they're
wanting to learn more now. But to, to say that we need to simplify the process
and take out the very essence and the meaning of having the community
involvement through the advisory committee, the General Island Plan Advisory
Committee, the GPAC, and not to take the word of these people who've spoken
before me, everybody who testified except for those who are interested in their
particular projects, they all had the detail and they all had the good points, and I
hope that you consider those and do not simplify this Island Plan. It's, it's
amazing. It's something we can all be proud of. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Members, questions for our testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much. Our next testifier will be Bill Greenleaf and Mr. Greenleaf will
be followed by Mike Foley and Mr. Foley is the last person to have signed up to
testify today. If there's anyone else, would you please sign up outside the door or
at the end of Mr. Foley's testimony, I'll give you one more opportunity.
Mr. Greenleaf, good afternoon.
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MR. GREENLEAF: Good afternoon, Madam Chair, General Plan Council members.
My name's William Greenleaf I'm a local farmer and I'm also a board member
of the Hawaii Farmers Union. First, I'd like to speak as a local fanner.
Agriculture, I, I heard it said that Rural...that Agriculture designation things are
not adequate for agricultural and that it should be Rural, and I'd like everybody to
know that if you go and see some of the local farms that are getting started,
there's between seven and nine thousand local farmers now, you'll see the magic
that a human being can bring to the land to create culture in the land that will feed
them. And when you look at a piece of land and as a planner or a developer and
you say, boy, I sure wouldn't want to put a house there and I can't imagine them
fanning it, I don't know what we're going to do with this and you give that land
to some Hawaiian people and you give 'em some resources to work with it,
they'll put food on that land and they've done it for thousands of years, years
before we were here. So, I really as an individual on Maui I, I, and a farmer, I
recommend that you don't change Agricultural to Rural and, and you take a hard
look at that 'cause then that opens it up for machines to come in to dig up the dirt,
tear things apart, and, and then it really isn't Maui anymore. As Hawaii Farmers
Union board member, I've come to these meetings at my own personal expense
and...to gather information and really it's, it's...imagine not being at all those
meetings, not being one of the people that participated for five years, one of the
two Planning Chairman, one of the nine people on the Planning Board, all the
25 citizens that went to those meetings and the hundreds and hundreds of hours, I
almost...I feel so sad when I hear those people talk about that plan that now all of
a sudden, I guess you probably hear the threat that they feel in their voice that all
those concerns and the idea that people were, that were developers and people that
were for holding the lands, it was they came together in consensus and now they
see that just being whited out with vague language. Well, my job for the Farmers
Union is to go back and report what I'm seeing here, and I have to tell you I, I see
that people are, are speaking, speaking, speaking, because they feel that the rug
underneath them is being pulled out, that the years that they put into planning and
the years that they worked and they sat and they worked on every single word,
and now they're being heard those words are too vague, there's too many, too
many pages. Well, Council, you guys have a really tough task and I can tell you
the people on Maui are feeling threatened, and I know you're going to hear more
and more about it. They don't want this Plan to be watered down or, or made in a
way that's going to allow attorneys not to defend what the people wanted and let
developers just go ahead and move in and then people will say, well, hey, it's in
the Plan. They don't want that. So, I thank you very much for your time and for
your work.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you,
Mr. Greenleaf. Last person to...the last person to sign up today is Mike Foley. If
there's anyone else, would you please sign up outside the door? There's a nice
lady waiting to take care of you. Go ahead, Mr. Foley. Good afternoon.
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MR. FOLEY: Good afternoon, Madam Baisa and Members of the Committee. The
disadvantage of speaking at the end is that many of the things that I was going to
say have already been said eloquently so, I'm going to touch on just a few of them
very quickly. First of all, I support the revised Table 8 that was submitted to you
by Dick Mayer. It's a compromise. We put it together as a compromise because
we frankly want the Council to get on with the maps. We've spent enough time
on the text, let's get on to the good stuff, let's get onto the maps. And as Chris
Hart mentioned, Country Towns have been in the Maui community plans and the
Zoning Ordinance for many, many years. Irene Bowie talked to you about the
size of the various general plans. We did this research because we, we actually
wondered what the trend was in general plans across the country. What we
discovered is that most of these community plans are significantly larger than the
Maui Island Plan at 368 pages. The ones that I'm most familiar with that are the
most similar are Marin County at 667 pages and Santa Barbara County at
777 pages, but the... it's obvious from these numbers that the trend is for general
plans to become more detailed because it reduces uncertainty for developers.
Chris Hart mentioned that the Countywide Policy Plan was adopted by ordinance.
This Maui Island Plan will be adopted by ordinance. These plans will be
legislation not guidelines. Maui Island Plan is not an additional layer of
regulation. Anyone who says that it is obviously hasn't read it. The Maui Island
Plan is the foundation for preparing the six community plans and it will make
those community plans significantly easier to prepare. Thank you.
CHAIR BALSA: Thank you. . . .(Coughs). . . Excuse me. Any questions? Seeing none,
thank you, Mr. Foley. We have one more testifier that's Bryan Sarasin, again, the
last person to sign up. Good afternoon, Mr. Sarasin.
MR. SARASIN: Good afternoon, Chair Baisa and the Council. Mine's going to be very
short and brief to the point. The map that...my name's Bryan Sarasin. I'm
testifying as an individual today. The map that the Waihee community was in
favor of was the latest map that came out from Planning, not the earlier map that
showed all kinds of development in our area. And for, for the, for, for myself
since I'm speaking on my behalf, I'm looking at keeping the community a
separate community, not being developed, not turning into a Wailuku, Kahului,
Kihei, Lahaina, Kapalua. We need to keep it as the agricultural community that it
is for the people and keep the gentlemen estates and the developments out of our
area, because we're trying to keep our identity. Our identity, our culture is so
important to us and it's just something that we're going to continue to pursue to
make sure that that does happen. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Any questions? Mr. Couch?
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Mr. Sarasin, for being
here. The map you're saying you like is the essentially the one with all the blue
around Kahakuloa --I'm sorry-- Kahakuloa rural and the village and then Waihee
I? Is that the one?
MR. SARASIN: I'm not really sure. I know that I...that that doesn't appear to be the
map that I saw from the last one that Mr. Spence gave that I...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: This is the last one we got from Mr. Spence.
MR. SARASIN: Okay. Then that would be...I'm...I, I can't really talk for Kahakuloa
because that's a separate community, but I am in, in support...see, the first map
that came out way back in I guess 2010 was showing that there was tremendous
development to be in our area. And we rallied to stop that development and that
was taken out of the, out of that, that map.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
MR. SARASIN: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Further questions? Seeing none, Mr. Sarasin, thank you. We'll make
sure we have the right map. Okay. Is there anyone else who'd like to testify? I
think that everybody who wants to testify has had an opportunity. I see no one
else coming up to the podium. Members, without any objections, the Chair would
like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. The Chair is going to close public testimony
which I'm doing right now and following this, Chair would like us to take our
afternoon break. It's now about seven minutes after three; can we try to be in our
seats by 3:20, if possible. Members, I would appreciate that very much so, the
meeting is now in recess. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

3:07 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:34 p.m.

CHAIR BAISA: . . . (gavel). . . Will the meeting please come back to order. Thank you,
everyone, for that break. It was necessary so we could take care of some
technology issues but I think we are ready to go. The Chair has decided that
while the issue is fresh in mind and that we have the information we need with us
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and the persons that really are interested in this are here today so we can use them
as resources if we need be, we are going to try to work on the Table 8 and it's up
on...it's up on the screen. We have the version first of all that we got in
December 2010 and that's one on the left, the one in the center is the proposal that
was made as a revision by Mr. Mayer today, and on the right we have the 2012
map that was given to us by the Planning Director. So, Mr. Spence, if you could
lead off, please, Chair would like to have you do that.
MR. SPENCE: Could you please repeat that, Madam Chair?
CHAIR BAISA: We, we'd just like your comments on the three versions -MR. SPENCE: Oh.
CHAIR BAISA: --or any information you'd like to share.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. Thank you. I think as, as you know, I think the, the existing
Table 8-2 contains too much detail, and when I say too much detail, what I'm
thinking is down the line when somebody is coming into the Planning Department
and they're requesting, you know, what can I do with my property, there's going
to be a lot of different answers and a lot of interpretation that's going to have to
be done. That's hard on, on mostly the smaller land owner. The...down towards
to the end of...at the very bottom of the existing Table 8-2, we, we had and...so I
think this one should probably be the easiest for the, for myself and the
Committee where we talk about this agricultural overlay. I know Mr. Mayer
testified today that, you know, this could be a, perhaps a reference map and I'm
not trying to put words in his mouth and we actually talked about that at our last
meeting. I, I think it's perfectly fine. I think it's proper to have a map within this
Plan that identifies, you know, the patterns of agriculture within, you know,
within Maui island. My problem was not with the map; it was with creating an
overlay because overlays are legislative. I, I think the Council would want to take

a good hard look at that. There's no specifics on who could do what and what
kinds of forms you could have in that and how do we preserve it, those kinds of
things. It would have been a legislative nightmare and it's better something for a
lot of discussion, you know, within...for other committees. As a reference map
it's fine; as an overlay that I, I have a very difficult time with.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Madam Chair?
CHAIR BAISA: Uh-huh. Yes, Mr. Couch.

VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Spence, what, what would
make it an overlay? Just the word "overlay" or are there...is there language in
there? I can't find any language that would say this, this is...
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MR. SPENCE: As...maybe Staff can find that specifically, but it, it as it exists, as this
was transmitted up to Council, there's reference to this being an overlay. And
maybe, maybe it's just on the map itself and it...but that map reflected...okay, it
is in...at the very bottom...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. It says it on the, on the existing. It does says
Agricultural Land, Agricultural Land Overlay District so that automatically makes
it now -MR. SPENCE: It, it certainly...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --a zoning layer.
MR. SPENCE: It certainly has that implication.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So if you were to say Maui Agricultural Land
Guidelines as is suggested...
MR. SPENCE: Or, or if it's been suggested that we just include a reference map and
even last, our last meeting we discussed including IAL on that.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Well, I do...I mean I see Mr. Mayer's compromise
language. Madam Chair, what I would like to do is be able to preserve the
definitions of prime or productive ag, community ag, and grazing and, and all that
the defmitions, characteristics, and examples, purpose, and implementation
strategies, like to preserve that somewhere even though it's set up as a...I would
like it set up as a...in the General Plan as a guideline, in the community plans it's
going to be much more strict.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Mr. Spence, any response?
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. So long as it's not in this table because the table is titled Growth

Boundaries.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Well, the, the suggested change is Growth Boundaries and Land
Use Planning Types so, and then it does say Growth Boundaries and then...
MR. SPENCE: Okay. If, if we, if we have a map that...a reference map that we can we
just reference within this table, I think that would be perfectly appropriate.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. And, and the reason I'm asking this, what would happen
if, you know, small mom and pop wanted to divide their ag land to their family
which I, is potentially going to happen to some Members' families here.
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Their...the folks are ready to retire and they want to divide their land amongst
their kids, and if there's this agricultural overlay there's yet another layer of
bureaucracy they have to go through?
MR. SPENCE: That's exactly my concern.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Then what about if it were just a guideline, you know, just
saying, okay, this kind of land is on the ALISH list as prime, be mindful but when
you, for instance if you were to subdivide for family subdivision you still have to
keep it in that type of use.
MR. SPENCE: That's hard to say, I mean, as a reference map when, when we go
to...somebody applies for a subdivision, we're going to reference that map, okay,
and how is that going to be applied in this situation? The...when you, when you
have the descriptions, you know, that, that are in here about ALISH and I believe
there's things about sizes and transfer development rights, those kinds of things,
we're going to look and, and see okay, how can, how is this going to apply to this
particular subdivision?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So if this language in the table, purpose and
implementation strategy, you would go back to that and say, oh, this is Prime
Ag-1; it says to protect existing agricultural production, allow for future
diversified agriculture to serve the island, and limit future subdivision potential.
MR. SPENCE: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: So...
MR. SPENCE: We would go back and reference that.
VICE - CHAIR COUCH: Would that be a rule, a law, or just say okay you gotta, you

gotta think about this in the overall picture of the whole application.
MR. SPENCE: We would, we would have to look at in the overall context. For instance,
we would look at a piece of cane land, or excuse me, or even former pineapple
land or existing pineapple land up in Haliimaile differently than we would look at
an existing two- or four-acre lot in Kipahulu. Both will carry that prime
designation but the application is going to be different. And that's that...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Well, but I, I'm assuming it's the Plan's intent and pretty much
everybody here's intent is that land in Haliimaile, you want to keep it in Prime Ag
and -MR. SPENCE: That's correct.
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --and, not subdivide it into...
MR. SPENCE: That's correct. And that's why I'm saying that I, I agree with the intent
of it that that we'd be preserving those large tracts of ag land. The problem
with...for me is you have Prime on a piece of cane land or pineapple land, but
you also have that in Nahiku, you know, and the two, you know, the terrain is
different, the soils, on and on. You, you're going to have different applications
for different areas, and to say it's an overlay and you must apply this across the
board the same, that's, that's where the problem lies.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Right. And, and as the, the, the, the suggested new map says, it
calls it -CHAIR BAISA: Guidelines.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: -- Maui Agricultural Land Guidelines.
CHAIR BAISA: Guidelines.
MR. SPENCE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: And that's okay?
MR. SPENCE: I think that's perfect.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: Let's...if, if we have a...let's have a separate map or we can re-label the
existing map and we also discussed putting IAL on that map.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: I think that would be of real benefit to this Plan.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Any more questions about this, otherwise, I think we kind of
have an agreement and we'll put it to the Members to vote on it. But any more
discussion about the ag part of this? Otherwise, let's go to the Protection Area,
the types of Protection Areas, and you can see the differences in the 2010 map
and in Mr. Mayer's map and also in Mr. Spence's designations. You know,
because we all...most of us and, and the Members definitely, have the existing

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 14, 2012

table in their book, I would really like to maybe move that down and have
Mr. Spence's map so we can see it better, techies, Mr. GISes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: This one, this one. She wants to keep these two. We got that
one in the book already.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah. Move this one this way so that, yeah, so that we can see it, could
you, please? We're so lucky that we have our GIS folks here, they can do magic.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Sort of.
CHAIR BAISA: No, they can. Yes, they can.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They're on separate computers, that's the issue.
CHAIR BAISA: They're all doing this from different computers so it takes a little bit of
coordination to move things around, but it's hard because we can't really see
Mr. Spence's map very clearly, his table.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Is that now Mr. Spence's?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR BAISA: Is that Mr. Spence's? It's too big. Can we make it look like
Mr. Mayer's?
MR. SPENCE: Oh, I was thinking Mr. Mayer's was so much clearer than mine.
CHAIR BAISA: Well, you know that's intentional that we give him the middle, right?
MR. SPENCE: I understand.
CHAIR BAISA: ... (Laughter)... Now, now, we're trying to be fair to everybody.

MR. SPENCE: Yes, we are.
CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Madam Chair?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: While they're doing that, might I suggest that we find out how
Mr. Spence feels about the suggested changes --34-
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CHAIR BAISA: Absolutely -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --in that section and then go from there.
CHAIR BAISA: --let's save some time. Go ahead, Mr. Spence, your comments on this
part.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Madam Chair, Committee members. The...overall what the
Protection Areas...I agree that areas need to be protected. Again, my, my thought
is, this, this in principal this far outreaches what was intended by Bill 84 or
Bill 80--I forget which other one--53 I think, which calls for just two, two
boundary types. We can call...there's going...so, my viewpoint is that it's going
to be...it should be simplified, but the places that are going to be regional park or
regional or interregional in character, we'll see some of those on the maps when
we get to 'em. The, the greenways and things are more for the, for the individual
community plan areas. But this, this one, you know, it's up to the Committee.
The sensitive lands in particular though, there's two other maps, two other
proposed maps for this plan that show the sensitive lands that's so, we'll have like
triple redundancy on this so, there's going to be other places where we're going to
show a whole lot of other things.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Couch, did you have a question or a comment?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: Or any other, other Members, anybody want to comment? We don't,
you know, I'll be happy to include you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He's just dominating the conversation.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No, you can take.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we'll just watch and go, watch and go.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Raise, raise your hand and I will stop him.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If we have a question.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Okay, Mr. Couch, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Under Protection Areas in the, in the text, it, it's
basically just saying what way it's, it's kind of a tool so, in my mind this is just to
show you what, what the definition of Protection Areas are. It doesn't actually
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say where they are; there's no map, again, this green area where it says Types of
Protection Area might be guidelines for types of protected...or whatever, but it's,
it, it, this defines stuff for you but it doesn't specifically say on the map where
those Protection Areas are, it just tells you what they are.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. It...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: And, and then in the community plan we can say okay, I want
regional park here, greenbelt there, greenway here or you can even put suggested
areas for greenways, and greenbelts, and sensitive lands on the General Plan so
people know, have an idea. So, so, if I'm, if I'm going to develop someplace and
I'm going to look at the map and see this green sensitive land in the General Plan,
I'm going to say, oh, I better think about it.
MR. SPENCE: That's correct. That's, that's the intent behind it. Again, to let the...I
understand that the community plans are some distance off, but having worked on
the Upcountry Greenways Master Plan, the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community
Plan where we show bikeways and we show, you know, the separations between
communities and those kinds of things, that's a lot of discussion for, I believe for
the residents of that community plan area, because those people know their
community best. For the purposes of this Plan, I, I think it's appropriate to show,
you know, areas for preservation. I think it should be more generalized.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay. But typically, a greenbelt or a greenway will go between
community plans, that's why we have the General Plan there. You can call a
bikeway or the North Shore Bikeway, that's kind of a greenbeltish type of thing -MR. SPENCE: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --and that could potentially once we get it all completely done,
go between several different community plans.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. And that, that would make sense to me.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Mister...
MR. SPENCE: And I, Madam Chair...
CHAIR BAISA: Go ahead. Go ahead. Sure.
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MR. SPENCE: And I would just propose, just for the record as we're gone...as I've been
looking through these maps and I'm considering making recommendations to the
Council, I'm not proposing to take any of those greenways off of...greenways or
regional plans or preservation areas off of these maps.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Spence.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. White. Comment?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, I thought ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or either.
CHAIR BAISA: Oh, I'm sorry. Either one of you. Ms. Cochran, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. So, Mr. Spence, I guess your
Table 8-2 is Urban and Rural Growth Boundaries and then Mr. Mayer's says
Growth Boundaries and Land Use Planning Types so, the heading alone in 8-2...
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Cochran. We concentrated now on the green part of this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I know, but I'm just trying to simplify like
you're trying to get to myself, you know, your Urban, Rural and Protection is
kind of like the just the growth boundary types in reference to Mr. Mayer's, and
the rest, the guidelines and sort of defining the protected areas. So to me it's
almost like perhaps you would like to see two different tables, one focusing on
just the growth or a boundary type definitions and then the other land use
planning types of definition because you primarily want it as a reference guideline
type table -MR. SPENCE: That's...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and not guiding the, the growth.
MR. SPENCE: I would say that that's another way to do it. I, I...but with due respect to
the communities, I mean maybe... Okay. The, the way that Mr. Mayer lays this
out, he, he lays out Growth Boundary Types and then the others are protection,
types of protection areas or maybe if it's just more clear that that these are
planning types, land use planning types within the Protection Areas and the, the
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ag, that, that would accomplish the same thing. And I mean everybody seems to
be really, really want all these things on this table.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE; If, if that distinction is made that's fine with me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I guess the, the question I have is you
mentioned a little bit ago that a lot of this should wait for the community plans,
but I think my concern with that is that when you're talking about greenbelts or
greenways, there are certain, in, in my mind, there're certain view plains that we
want to try to protect, certain areas through which when you drive in some cases
you've got houses right up to the, you know, right up to the road on both sides so
you're blocking what could be nice views. So, my, my view of these greenbelts
or greenways is an effort to say, and this to me is more of a general plan item than
a community plan item, these are our important highways, byways, or protection
areas that we want to...in which we want to establish some level of setback from
the roadways so that you're not just going down a tunnel of, tunnel of houses.
And I think that the general plan timeframe is, is the one in which we should be
establishing some of these where we have particularly, particularly fabulous
views that we want to protect. And the SMA process protects public views and I
think this process should be used to protect that as well so, I, I'm not sure I agree
that we should be waiting `til the, the community plan. Maybe in the, in the
communities itself, but outside those communities where we've got, we've
currently got broad open spaces, we should take advantage of that and say this is,
this is an important scenic highway or scenic route or one that should be protected
between this community and this community So, I'd like to think we can move
in the direction of imposing that at the general plan level rather than maybe
waiting until the community plan, because if it takes us seven years to do a
general plan, I'd hate to think how long it's going to be -MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --before a community plan can impose a greenway say
between Waikapu and, and, and the, the Pali or some portions of Haleakala
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Highway in various areas. So, I just, I'm just throwing that out because I think
it's something I would hate to push too far down the road.
MR. SPENCE: Madam Chair?
CHAIR BALSA: Go ahead.
MR. SPENCE: The...one thing that we deferred to the end of this process or at least
further down the line was the adoption of all kinds of other maps for this, for this
plan. One of those maps--actually it might be on a couple of maps--are the scenic
corridors, and they're, they're basically a line along portions of, you know, our
different highways and around Hana, et cetera. The...they don't say how, you
know, they don't give setbacks or anything like that, but one of the things that we
included in, I believe it's in the environmental section of the, the Plan, was to
adopt an ordinance specifically for what you're discussing here, and I think that
was, that was actually something I proposed. We have ordinances that cover
everything except scenic like what you're discussing here so, we can, you know,
if we want to put this in this part of the Plan that's fine. It's redundant with, going
to be redundant with other parts of the Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Where else in the Plan would we find specific...I mean
to me it, it's easier to see when you've laid it out on a map.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. Well...but what Chapter is that in? Chapter 2 which is what
chapter? Do you want to answer, John?
CHAIR BALSA: It was a while ago, wasn't it?
MR. SPENCE: It was a while ago.
CHAIR BALSA: Yeah.
MR. SUMMERS: There we go.
CHAIR BALSA: Heritage. Heritage section.
MR. SUMMERS: Feels like a lifetime ago.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
MR. SUMMERS: We do have a scenic corridor map in Chapter 2, the Heritage Resource
Chapter, but that is a different type of map than say greenway or a greenbelt map.
They serve two different purposes so that's an important map. It was deferred
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following the Directed Growth Chapter, we'd look at that map again, but two
distinct and different tools.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. It sounds like Mr. Mayer is the person who has offered the
alternative here. Members, without objection, he'd like to offer a little bit...a
remark, a few more remarks at this point and then we can close this up.
Mr. Mayer. With no objections, Members? Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Real quick before he comes up, I would love to hear him One
thing that is missing from all of these is transit corridors. Is there where they
would be? Could they be part of greenways or is that something completely
different?
MR. SUMMERS: You, you may have a transit corridor that serves as a greenway so it's
sort of a multi-use corridor. We do have a separate map for that.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: I wouldn't put it on this table.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: And if I may clarify a little bit relating to the previous answer to
Councilmember White. The green, the greenways serve as travel corridors.
That's a easy way to remember the distinction between a greenbelt and a
greenway, service travel corridors between different areas. The ones identified on
these maps for the most part are interregional in nature or serve an island-wide
purpose. The greenbelt serves as a buffer between communities so that's a unique
tool. Again, and, and really if you look at the, the document, there aren't too
many greenbelts but those that are included are very strategic in their application.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Summers. Members, I'm going to ask Mr. Mayer up
for a few, few seconds. Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much. This is, this is, this is...I just grabbed this from
Chapter 2, this is a map that has greenways on it. Lot of comments were made
about the length of the document. We...before we even got going, there were 26,
I think, 25, 26 different actual studies, many of them over a 100 pages long that
we had to digest down and so, what you really have is a summary of a much,
much larger amount of material. But let me just comment on the, on the
discussion you had here. With regard to these areas, it would have been easy just
to say let's define what a greenway is, a greenbelt, put it in the glossary, but I
think it's much more than just the definition. What we need to know is how it
should be implemented, and that's why I think there is a value to having the three
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columns, the purpose of it and, and... so that when the community plans group go
and they say what is a greenway, what is a greenbelt or a sensitive lands, they will
have in this one document, so that all the community plans will tie together with
the same definitions, certain things and I think it's useful. Now, if you wanted to
say the top half of this page should be Growth Boundaries and you want Table 8.3
that has the bottom half of that page, I mean that would be a...or you could, if
they fit nicely on one page and it's usable and functional, it could be all on one
chart, but I think the real utility to having those different definitions as well as
how they're going to be implemented.
CHAIR BALSA: Thank you, Mr. Mayer. Questions for Mr. Mayer or any further
discussion? Otherwise, the Chair would like to move to the last part of this page
and ask the Planning Director for his comments on the recommendation.
Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: So we're talking about the Growth Boundary?
CHAIR BALSA: Correct.
MR. SPENCE: Okay.
CHAIR BALSA: I saved the best for last.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. When I looked at...and, and...when I looked at the maps which,
you know, it, it's sort of unfortunate we're not looking at all of the maps as, you
know, at the outset so you can, it'd, it'd be easier to see I think what, what I'm
talking about. The...when you start getting into all these different kinds of Rural
and Country Town, I think we're losing...we're gaining complexity for the Plan
for no appreciable purpose, particularly the Rural when you look at Rural Service
Center, that includes some of our Country Towns. People refer to, like for
instance, when, when we were doing the, the Kula Ridge project, person after
person at the Land Use Commission got up and testified this a rural area, don't
put this here. This is a rural area, this is a rural area. Yet that area contains a lot
of different urban uses. You have Morihara Store, you have schools, you have
schools on rural land, and yet somehow those things are not included in the, in the
Service Center designations. Some things, I should say some of the things are
missing out of the Service Center designations and then you look at other maps at,
you know, Waihee, Haiku. Those are designated for Country Towns and it's, it
seems very inconsistent to me. When somebody comes in and, and wants a
Certificate of Occupancy, when somebody comes in and they want to do a
Conditional Permit or something like that, and you, you start looking at okay, are
they Rural Service Center, or are they right outside of the Rural Service Center, or
you know, what's going on here, it becomes that much more difficult to navigate
our permitting process. So, to simplify, I went back to County Code 2.80 and it
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calls for two different growth boundaries. It calls for Urban and it calls for Rural,
and even back in, I believe it was 2006 when we were adopting that part of the
Code, there was a lot of testimony that, that these two growth boundaries would
be further defined within the community plans so, that's what, that's my intent on
it. Again, I believe the people from that particular area, the community plan
region knows best what should go within those boundaries. The, the one I have a
hard time with, that, all that said, I do recognize say, for instance, Makawao town
how do you call it rural or how do you call it urban? That one, that one's difficult
for me. There's a couple others that are very confusing to me but that one in
particular. We still think of Makawao town as, as a rural town, it's a small town,
it's small scale. If the Committee decides to go forward with just the two
different growth boundaries, I'm going to be recommending that, for instance,
that Makawao town be designated for Rural and if you look at the definitions that
I've written into the Plan, you can have your Country Towns and those kinds of
uses that, that scale of use within the Rural boundaries for this Plan.
CHAIR BAISA: Members, comments? So, Mr. Spence, what I'm hearing is if you look
at the proposed revision by Mr. Mayer, he has three, three classes and then of
course he's broken Rural into a number of things. It sounds like you're okay with
Urban, you're okay with Rural, you're okay with Country Towns. I, I don't think
I kind of exactly followed.
MR. SPENCE: Madam Chair, I would rather we have just the two growth boundaries.
CHAIR BAISA: You just prefer.
MR. SPENCE: That's what the law calls for.
CHAIR BAISA: So, Urban and Rural and not have Country Towns.
MR. SPENCE: That would be my preference. If, if we were to have Country Towns, I

think we would, I would change some things on that list.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Members? Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Can Mr. Spence elaborate? He said
would make changes to that Country Town so what would that be?
MR. SPENCE: The, the problem is, comes when for instance, Haliimaile under the
Rural, we have some Business Country Town Zoning there. We have Light
Industrial there. Pauwela, I don't see that up there. Pauwela out by the cannery
right now that's designated...to me that's part of a Country Town. There was an
establishment there based on pineapple and that should be reflected, you
know...basically anything that we currently have Country Town Zoning in...if we
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were going to go Country Town, all those things should be under the Country
Town designation. If we're going to call it Rural then all those, all our Country
Town should be within the Rural category.
CHAIR BAISA: Any questions? Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Then if you look at this suggested changes, would
you be...if we, if we move the Country Town into...as, as another subdivision of
Rural and left the definition there and kind of integrated the purpose and
implementation strategy, would this document be something that you could
support and, and work with?
MR. SPENCE: Then we're...well, then we're just, we're just subdividing categories into
more and more designations, but it, it's not resolving the complexity issue. It's
not resolving the, I mean, if we say okay, there's two boundaries and then we're
subdividing, I'm not sure how we're going to...you know, we're dividing out
those things, I'm not sure how we're going to show those on maps. Or are you
just saying within the Rural Boundaries...
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Within the Rural Boundaries you have Country Towns and it
explains what Country Towns are, rural areas and like you say -MR. SPENCE: Yeah. And that, and that's pretty much -VICE-CHAIR COUCH: --up to the community plan to determine...
MR. SPENCE: Okay. I, I stand corrected. I hear your intent and that's pretty much
what I've...trying to be, you know, have tried to say all along. Within the Rural
Boundaries we can have Country Towns.
CHAIR BAISA: Sounds, sounds clear to me except that, you know, we'd have to
rearrange this table.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: Can we get comment from Mr. Mayer? Mr. Mayer, any comment to
that compromise?
MR. MAYER: You know, what I think I'm hearing you say is that you would take the
Rural Country Town and right now, under the Rural on the right side here, you
have Rural Service Center, Rural Residential, and you'd have a third category
Country Town.
CHAIR BAISA: Correct.
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MR. MAYER: I mean, it, it could work. But there was such a cry for the concept of a
Country Town from so many of the testifiers, that we thought it deserved its own
thing separate from Rural. That's why even though the Ordinance said there
should be only the two boundaries, we thought 'cause we, we heard from the
public that there was such an outcry for Country Town actual designation for
certain communities which are larger than a Waiakoa or a, or a Keokea, a place
like Makawao, Paia as examples that we thought there should be a separate
category for it. I mean, in the end, it will be how it will be applied at the
community plan level, because when...and when an, when an application comes
in, you're going to hear from testifiers with the various projects we want Country
Town, we want this. Will Country Town give them more options? I mean, it's,
it's a call you'll have to make. I'd prefer to have it as a separate category because
I think there are some communities that are definitely not Waiakoa or Waihee but
are much more urbanized like Paia and Makawao as examples and I think it
deserves its own attention. That will be a call you'll have to eventually make.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. We have a couple of suggestions and we have a
suggestion for a compromise. How do...any, any objections, any additional
thought? Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I guess a question for the Director. If
I heard you correctly, you would, you would simply take the, the zoning for
Country Town and Rural towns and they would be somewhat similar or would
there still be a distinction? I mean, I'm having a hard time with having
completely different sets of rules for towns that may be just, you know,
fractionally different in size.
MR. SPENCE: And that's, that's part of my concern as well, because how do, how do
you...I understand Makawao town is a large, that's, that's really hard because it
could be urban or it could be rural in character. I think most everybody thinks of
it as rural in character.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. SPENCE: When you start getting into Pauwela, Haiku, Waiakoa, Keokea, you
know, you...we think of those as our little country towns. I don't know how
you'd divide it out into Service Center and all that, but when I look at the maps
that we have not gotten to, it's not clear to me how, how one applies in one place
and one doesn't apply in another place. I think that it should be...our Country
Towns should be lumped with, with...and when I say lumped within the Rural
Growth Boundaries, I'm talking about the urban uses that we have in there, the
little country stores, the public facilities, the schools that we have out in these
areas, those should be within the Rural Boundaries. We have rural residential and
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I mean stuff that's really half acre or one acre or things that could be two or five
acres, those should be lumped in there, as well as the small farms that, you know,
we think of say in Kula. Those, those are all things that can be lumped into the
Rural. And it just makes it...it's going to make it a lot easier going down the road
for when people apply for permits and whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Further comments, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess just one clarification. What you're saying,
Mr. Spence, basically is the category Country Town and Rural, you want all
Rural, but Country Town could still stay as a separate category like, like what you
have here?
MR. SPENCE: I think what Mr. Couch was saying was to put...or now, if we're, if
we're looking at Mr. Mayer's proposal -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. SPENCE: --where it says Urban, Country Town, and Rural, we would take the
Country Town and put it into the Rural category.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. And that's what I'm trying to say. So, in
other words, on the...for lack of a better...for, in this one, in this middle one,
rural is purple, right?
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Country Town would...Rural would move
right on up and now Country Town would still be as a separate category but all
under Rural.
CHAIR BAISA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that what you're saying?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But wait, wait...he's not...everybody else is saying
yeah but he's not...
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MR. SPENCE: I'm not, I'm not clear on that.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Essentially same thing as what we were saying.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: So long as the, the Country Town it's falling under the Rural.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Under Rural.
CHAIR BAISA: Yes. Yes.
MR. SPENCE: That's what it would be. I mean just like it's listed there, it says Rural
areas, Rural Service Centers...
CHAIR BAISA: Right. Then that orange would become purple, if we're looking at in
front of us, it's blue. Yeah. I kind of...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And they got so many different colors.
CHAIR BAISA: It broadcasts purple but in front of you it's blue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah. Okay. Any further discussion on this? Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. I, I'm not so concerned about what color it
is as I am how...
CHAIR BAISA: You'd be surprised, it matters.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, I realize you have a little leaning towards pink and
purple but...
CHAIR BAISA: I didn't do the map. If I did they'd all be pink.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's right. My, my question is how does that change,
how does that change what somebody can do if they own a piece of property in a
Country Town versus a Rural Town?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Or Rural Residence.
MR. SPENCE: For my purposes when I look at this and I'm...it's...what we're saying
in...is more in the definitions, where part of the definitions in the...you're
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comparing the Urban to the Rural. You're saying that if you're in the Urban, this
is where the County's going to concentrate its infrastructure and, and et cetera,
et cetera. In the Urban, or excuse me, in the Rural, there's going to be less...we
expect more things to be like out in the country. There's less public services, the
roads are, you know, less formal, you know what I mean, they may not have
curbs, gutter, sidewalks, those kinds of things. The whole character of it is more
human scale as opposed to the Urban so, by putting Country Towns into Rural,
you're saying let's maintain this character of this area like it is; it's more
informal, you're much more out in the country than you would be if you were in
the Urban. Does that...it's more of a character thing than it is a...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. I, I think I, I hear where you're headed, but the
question is when we get into these distinct zoning types it comes with the ability
to do or not to do certain things. So, there's a, you know, there's a difference
between what's allowed in a Country Town and what's allowed in a Rural Service
Center. So by putting Country Towns into Rural are we reducing what is allowed
in a Country Town or are we increasing what you can do in a Rural Service
Center?
MR. SPENCE: No. Well, the short answer is no. You're not increasing or decreasing.
What you're saying is, is basically what I believe, is that those things should be
defined in, more defined in the community plans.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Yeah, that's... I'm fine with that.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Any...yes, Mr. Mayer, one more time, quick.
MR. MAYER: I, I think that the distinction between Country Town versus Rural is
really in the nature of infrastructure and that the four areas for example that are up
there as examples of would be places where people living in those areas could
expect that the County would provide perhaps, not necessarily, but bus service or
a sewer line someday or something of that sort. Whereas people in rural areas
should not necessarily expect that all the infrastructure will be provided,
sidewalks and everything else. And I think it's those kinds of distinctions that
would differentiate a country town from a rural area. And so, by...and the main
difference would be if you put it as a separate category then probably on the maps
that you'll be approving, you'll have three categories: Urban, Country Town, and
Rural. If you put Country Town within the Rural classification, you'll have the
two categories and leave it totally up to the community plan groups to decide
which will be the Country Towns, which will be the Service Centers, et cetera,
but I think probably, my guess is, is that you probably already now you know
which areas probably will be the ones that would be the Country Towns and
probably could designate it now and make that easier, but that's, that would be a
call you'll have to make.
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CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Thank you. I...Chair thinks that what I'm hearing from the
Members is that we are comfortable with the two categories with the Country
Towns moving into Rural, and that means that details will come in the community
plans. Is that what I'm hearing? Anybody object?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no objections.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Very good. Well, Mr. Raatz, can I wrap this up with a vote on
the table, a revised table? Or are we okay with consensus.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: We, we can consensus. Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Alright, Members. I am not going to try to push us any further
today, because I really feel that we've put in a really hard week so far. We had a
very long day yesterday. We worked until 6:30 or so and I think that we've
worked on this table today which is a great accomplishment. And as we go
forward, this table is going to, you know, having worked on this table will help us
as we move forward so Chair wanted to deal with this today. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I just have a question for Mr. Spence. Where
does Olowalu fit in to these definitions?
MR. SPENCE: Oh. That's a good question. That's...well, we haven't gotten there yet.
CHAIR BAISA: We're not there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no, no. I mean currently the, the way Olowalu is
right now, where is it -CHAIR BAISA: As it exists now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --is it considered a Country Town, is it a Rural
Service, what, what is it designated, what would in your mind, Rural or Country
Service?
MR. SPENCE: Right now, right now, as the maps that are presented to the Council, it's
Rural Service Center.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Rural Service Center.
MR. SPENCE: And so it would fall under the, you know, the Rural boundary. What will
come before you, what will come before you will be a whole other...
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, right, right. I'm not going there.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm just trying to wrap my head around the
definition like what falls into the purview of Country Town versus Rural Service
Center, and Olowalu came to mind and also you know, I just, seem like Paia,
Waikapu, and Pukalani are very different to me and they're in the Country Town
on the proposed, you know, suggested table. There's so much more in the town
of Pukalani and Paia versus Waikapu So, for me, I get the idea of country town
but you know, then you got Maalaea so I'm not sure if these...trying to get the
idea of the difference between the definitions in relation to the towns that are
listed are, you know, sort of coincide in my mind anyways.
MR. SPENCE: My preference would be not to name those towns at all.
CHAIR BAISA: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright.
CHAIR BAISA: And, and Ms. Cochran the Chair agrees with you. I have a real
difficulty with describing Paia as a country town.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. It's almost tourism for me now.
CHAIR BAISA: For me Makawao is a quintessential country town but you know, I've
learned to live with the definitions, but as a native of that country town, when I
think country town I think of cows and boots and not the beach.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: But you know, that's just the way it is.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. SPENCE: That's exactly the way I see it.
CHAIR BAISA: But I...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: So, Members I think we've done a whole lot of good work today.
Mr. Couch, anything you want to add?
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VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Just real quick on a possible typo, I'm not sure. Down under
prime or productive ag, where he talks about as well as land protected within
agricultural easements and officially... first of all, officially is spelled wrong, you
probably can just correct that, but I think he wants to talk to IALs, right?
Important Ag Lands is that where you're talking about, mister...
CHAIR BAISA: I-A-Ls.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: AILs.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: I-A-Ls. Okay. I-A-Ls. I just wanted to make sure that that's...
So if Mr. Raatz can fix that.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Yes, it is going to be important. I'm sure there's a lot of that kind of
thing in all of these pages. There's an awful lot of work here. Chair again would
like to thank all of the people who came today, all of the testifiers, all the people
that are working with us on this. And we will continue to try do the very best we
can to move forward and we appreciate your help. This Committee will meet
again tomorrow afternoon at 1:30. We are going to be in recess and so the
meeting is now in recess. Thank you everyone. Yes, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: You may want to warn the audience and anybody's watching
on TV that there's no testimony tomorrow.
CHAIR BAISA: Well, it was agendized but I will say it again. Because it is a recess
there will be no testimony taken tomorrow when we start. The meeting will go
right to work. So, again, thank you very much. The meeting is now in recess.
.(gavel). . .
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